
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Deer Run Community  
Development District 

 
Agenda 

 
January 24, 2024 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



 
   Deer Run   
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.DeerRunCDD.com 
 
January 17, 2024 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Deer Run Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Deer Run Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 
January 24, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. at the Island Club, 501 Grand Reserve Drive, Bunnell, 
Florida 32110.   
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comments (regarding agenda items below) 
  
 III. Engineer’s Report - Remediation of Areas 4 and 11 
 
 IV. Public Hearing Adopting User Rates and Fees for Amenity Rental and Security 

Deposit, Resolution 2024-03 
 
 V. Consideration of Resolution 2024-04, Amending Amenity Policies 
 
 VI. Consideration of Fence Proposals  
 
 VII. Discussion of Irrigation Guidelines 
 
 VIII. Discussion of Plantings 
 
 IX. Discussion Regarding Flagler County School District – Bus Stop Locations for 

New Phases 
 
 X. Discussion of Solicitations for Contractual Services for District Vendors 
 
 XI. Staff Reports 
 A.  Attorney  
  

http://www.deerruncdd.com/


District Website: www.DeerRunCDD.com 
 

 B.  District Manager  
 
 C.  Operations Manager 
   1. Report 
 
   2. Yellowstone Report 
 
 XII. Supervisor’s Request  
 
 XIII. Public Comments 
 
 XIV. Approval of Consent Agenda 
 A.  Approval of the Minutes of the November 29, 2023 Meeting 
 
 B.  Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023 and Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses for the Period Ending December 31, 2023  
 
 C. Assessment Receipt Schedule  
 
 D. Approval of Check Register  
 
 XV. Next Scheduled Meeting:  March 27, 2024 @ 6:00 p.m.@ Island Club 
 
 XVI. Adjournment 
 
Community Interest: 
 A. Amenity Maintenance & Policy – Supervisor Poulin 
 B. Social Events –Supervisor Martin 
 C. Contracts – Supervisor Garner 
 D. Irrigation & Landscape – Supervisor Dean 
  
 

http://www.deerruncdd.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



RESOLUTION 2024-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE DEER 
RUN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING AMENITY 
FACILITIES POLICIES, RATES, AND FEES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Deer Run Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapters 120 and 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules, 
rates, charges and fees to govern the administration of the District and defray costs of operation 
and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for the conduct of District business; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) desires to adopt its rules, rates 

and fees related to the use of the District’s amenity facility and services (“Amenity Rates”), which 
governs the operation of the Amenity Facilities and other properties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Amenity Rates outlined in Exhibit A are just and 
equitable having been based upon (i) the amount of service furnished; and (ii) other factors 
affecting the use of the facilities furnished; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has complied with applicable Florida law concerning rule 
development, ratemaking, and rule and rate adoption, including the holding of a public hearing 
thereon; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board finds that it is in the best interests of the District and necessary for 

the efficient operation of the District to adopt by resolution the Amenity Rates, which are 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, for immediate use and 
application. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF DEER RUN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The Amenity Rates set forth in Exhibit A are hereby adopted pursuant to 
this resolution as necessary for the conduct of District business and shall remain in full force and 
effect unless revised or repealed by the District in accordance with Chapters 120 and 190, Florida 
Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 2.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 



 SECTION 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of January, 2024. 
 
 
ATTEST:     DEER RUN COMMUNITY 
      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary     Chairman, Board of Supervisors  
 
Exhibit A:  Amenity Rates 



Exhibit A:  
Amenity Rates 

 
Type Rate 

Security Deposit $200 
Rental Fee $50 per hour, maximum of four (4) hours 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



4868-1288-3615.1  

RESOLUTION 2024-04 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE DEER RUN COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AMENDING THE AMENITY FACILITIES POLICIES; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Deer Run Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of special purpose government 

created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District previously adopted its Amenity Facilities Policies, as amended, from time to time 
(“Amenity Policies”) and desires to adopt amended Amenity Policies for the efficient operation of the District and its 
amenities; and 

 
WHEREAS, after providing notice pursuant to Florida law, and after a public hearing, the Board of Supervisors 

desires to amend its Amenity Policies to address certain revisions to the policies of the Amenity Facilities; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that it is in the best interests of the District and necessary for the 
efficient operation of the District to adopt by resolution the Amenity Policies, as amended (“Amended Amenity 
Policies”), which are attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, for immediate use and 
application. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF DEER RUN 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The attached Amended Amenity Policies are hereby adopted pursuant to this Resolution as necessary for 

the conduct of District business. These Amended Amenity Policies shall stay in full force and effect until such time as 
the Board of Supervisors may amend these Amended Amenity Policies.  The Board of Supervisors reserves the right 
to approve such amendments by motion. 

 
 SECTION 2.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other provisions shall remain 

in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or 

repealed. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of January, 2024. 
 
 
ATTEST:      DEER RUN COMMUNITY 
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary     Chairman, Board of Supervisors  

 
  

  
  



2 
4868-1288-3615.1  

  

DEER RUN 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 

 

AMENITIES RULES & POLICIES 
    

 
  
  
  

Howard McGaffney, District Manager    
c/o Governmental Management Services, LLC  
475 West Town Place, Suite 114  
World Golf Village  
St. Augustine, Florida 32092  
P:  (904) 940-5850  
E-mail: hmcgaffney@gmsnf.com  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

    

  
PART 1: Deer Run Community Development District 

  
In accordance with Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and on July 27, 2022, at a duly noticed public 
meeting, the Board of Supervisors of the Deer Run Community Development District adopted the 



3 
4868-1288-3615.1  

following policies to govern the operation of the District’s Amenities.  All prior policies of the District are 
hereby superseded on a going forward basis.  
 

DEFINITIONS 
  
  The following definitions shall apply to these policies in their entirety:  
  

“Access Card” – shall mean the identification card issued to Patrons.  
  

“Amenities” – shall mean the properties and areas owned by the District and intended for recreational 
use and shall include, but not specifically be limited to, the District’s clubhouse, fitness center, swimming pool, 
multi-purpose field, tennis courts, playground, picnic area, and walking trails, together with their appurtenant 
areas, facilities, equipment, and any other common areas and appurtenances of the District related to the same.  
  

“Amenities Policies” or “Policies” – shall mean all Amenities Policies of the District, as amended from 
time to time.  
  

“Amenity Manager” – shall mean the management company, including Community Manager, 
Lifestyles Director and its employees, staff and agents, contracted by the District to manage the Amenities.  
  

 “Annual User Fee” – shall mean the base fee established by the District for the non-exclusive right to 
use the Amenities.  The amount of the Annual User Fee is set forth in the District’s rules.    
 
  “Board of Supervisors” or “Board” – shall mean the Board of Supervisors of the District.  
    
  “District” – shall mean the Deer Run Community Development District.  
  

 “District Manager” – shall mean the professional management company with which the District has 
contracted to provide management services to the District.   

 
“Family” – shall mean a group of individuals living under one roof or head of household.  This can 

consist of individuals who have not yet attained the legal age of majority (i.e., 18 or as otherwise provided by 
law), together with their parents or legal guardians.  This does not include visiting relatives, or extended family 
not residing in the home.   
  

 “Guest” – shall mean any person or persons, other than a Patron, who are expressly authorized by the 
District to use the Amenities or invited and who must be the accompanied for the entire day by a Patron to use 
the Amenities.  
  

 “Non-Resident” – shall mean any person that does not own property within the District.  
  
  “Non-Resident Patron” – shall mean any person or Family not owning property in the District who is 
paying the Annual User Fee to the District.  
  

“Patron” or “Patrons” – shall mean persons or entities who own real property (or members of the 
Family) within the District and those persons or entities not owning land within the District who have paid the 
annual user fee.  Tenants shall only be considered “Patrons” if they are renting or leasing a home from persons 



4 
4868-1288-3615.1  

owning property in the District pursuant to a current, written lease of not less than six months or if they pay the 
annual user fee. All other persons shall be considered guests.  
  
  “Person” – shall mean an individual, or legal entity recognized under Florida law.  
  

“Renter” – shall mean any tenant residing in a Resident’s home pursuant to a valid rental or lease 
agreement.  
 
 “Resident” – shall mean any person or Family owning property within the District. 
 

“Service Animal”- A service animal is any dog that is individually trained to do work or perform tasks 
for the benefit of an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other 
mental disability. Other species of animals, whether wild or domestic, trained, or untrained, are not 
considered service animals. 
   

“Wet Deck”- 6-feet wide unobstructed pool deck area around the outside of the pool water perimeter, 
curb, ladders, handrails, diving boards, diving towers, or pool slides, waterfalls, water features, starting blocks, 
planters, or lifeguard chairs. 
 
 

AUTHORIZED USERS 
  

Generally.  Only Patrons and Guests, as set forth herein, have the right to use the Amenities.    
  
Residents.  A Resident must pay the Annual User Fee applicable to Residents in order to have the right 

to use the Amenities.  Such payment must be made in accordance with the District’s annual assessment collection 
resolution and typically will be included on the Resident’s property tax bill.  Payment of the Annual User Fee 
entitles the Resident to use the Amenities for one full fiscal year of the District, which year begins October 1 
and ends September 30.    

  
Non-Residents.  A Non-Resident Patron must pay the Annual User Fee applicable to Non-Residents in 

order to have the right to use the Amenities for one full year, which year begins from the date of receipt of 
payment by the District.  This fee must be paid in full before the Non-Resident may use the Amenities.  Each 
subsequent Annual User Fee shall be paid in full on or before the anniversary date of application.    

 
Renter’s Privileges.  Residents who rent or lease residential unit(s) in the District shall have the right to 

designate the Renter of the residential unit(s) as the beneficial users of the Resident’s privileges to use the 
Amenities.    
  

1. A Renter who is designated as the beneficial user of the Resident’s rights to use the Amenities shall be 
entitled to the same rights and privileges to use the Amenities as the Resident.    

2. During the period when a Renter is designated as the beneficial user, the Resident shall not be entitled to 
use the Amenities, unless the owner owns more than one house and resides in one of the houses.  

3. Residents shall be responsible for all charges incurred by their Renters which remain unpaid after the 
customary billing and collection procedure established by the District. Resident owners are responsible 
for the deportment of their respective Renter.  

4. Renters shall be subject to all rules and policies as the Board may adopt from time to time.  
  



5 
4868-1288-3615.1  

Guests.  Except as otherwise provided for herein, each Patron (by Family) may bring a maximum of four 
(4) Guests to the Amenities, provided however that Guests must be accompanied by the Patron when using the 
Amenities and provided however that the Patron will be responsible for any harm caused by the Patron’s Guests 
while using the Amenities.  For clarification purposes, the preceding sentence shall be construed to place a four 
(4) Guests limitation on the total number of Guests that a Patron may bring on behalf of that Patron’s particular 
residence or household – e.g., a Patron Family consisting of four people cannot bring up to four Guests each for 
a total of sixteen Guests, but instead can only bring a total of four (4) Guests on behalf of the entire household.  
The District may also in its discretion invite Guests as part of any community programming activities.  
Applicable fees may apply.  Guests shall be subject to all rules and policies as the Board may adopt from time 
to time.    

  
Registration / Disclaimer.  In order to use the Amenities, each Patron, all members of a Patron’s Family, 

and all Guests shall register with the District by executing a Registration Form, and by executing the Consent 
and Waiver Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  All persons using the Amenities do 
so at their own risk and agree to abide by the rules and policies for the use of the Amenities.   As set forth 
more fully later herein, the District shall  assume no responsibility and shall not be liable for any accidents, 
personal injury, or damage to, or loss of property arising from the use of the Amenities or from the acts, 
omissions or negligence of other persons using the Amenities.  Patrons are responsible for their actions 
and those of their Guests.    
  

ACCESS CARDS 
  

Use of Access Cards.  Patrons use their Access Cards to gain access to the Amenities.   Upon arrival at 
the clubhouse or other Amenities, Patrons will scan their Access Cards in the card reader located outside of the 
main entrance doors in order to unlock the doors.  Under no circumstance should a Patron provide an Access 
Card to another person to allow him or her to use the Amenities.  

  
Issuance of Access Cards.  Each Patron will receive two (2) Access Card per house hold upon 

registration with the District. Proof of residence is required.    
  

Non-Transferrable.  Access Cards are the property of the District and are nontransferable except in 
accordance with the District’s rules and policies.    
  

Lost or Stolen Cards.  All lost or stolen cards need to be reported immediately to the District. Fees will 
be applied according to the fee schedule listed below.  
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY PROGRAMMING 
  

Resources.  The District is pleased to offer a wide variety of programs and activities designed to meet 
the needs of community members of all ages, interests and skill levels.  Each year, the Amenity Manager will 
evaluate and improve upon existing programs, as well as continually add new activities in each category.  The 
format of each program or activity will be structured to most effectively provide participants with a positive 



6 
4868-1288-3615.1  

recreational experience of the highest caliber.  Patrons can easily find information on new programs and events 
by picking up the monthly program calendars, reviewing the community bulletin board, or by contacting the 
Amenity Manager at the clubhouse:  

  
Amenity Manager by 
Email: deerrunmgr@rmsnf.com or 
Phone: 386-263-7213 
  
Patrons and Guests Only.  Unless otherwise directed by the District, programs will be open to Patrons 

and their Guests only, subject to payment of any applicable fees.  Patrons may register Guests for programs; 
however, in order to provide Patrons with priority registration, Guests may be assessed a surcharge and will only 
be able to register for programs if space permits.  
  

Registration.  Most programs will require advanced registration or an RSVP to allow the staff to plan 
effectively.  To avoid the unnecessary cancellation of a program, register by the posted deadline.  Late 
registrations may be accepted on a case-by-case basis.  Due to the nature of some programs and the availability 
of space, late registration may not always be feasible.  Some programs will have maximum registration 
limitations.  In the event a program is full, a waiting list will be created.  If there are cancellations in the program, 
the Patrons on the waiting list will be contacted.  This waiting list will also be used to determine if an additional 
program can be offered.    
  

Programs and Activities.  All programs and services including personal training, group exercise, 
instructional programs, competitive events, and other programs must be conducted through the Amenity 
Manager or as directed by the Board.  A schedule of activities for the Amenities will be posted in each area and 
updated by the Amenity Manager.   

  
Athletic Teams.  The District may from time to time authorize certain athletic teams that may be eligible 

to use the Amenities for both practice and competitions, pursuant to a license or other appropriate agreement 
between the District and the athletic team.  For such events, teams from outside the District may be invited to 
participate in competitions.  The District’s rules and policies apply to all such teams, and all such members of 
any outside teams shall be considered Guests within the meaning of these policies.  Please contact the Amenity 
Manager for further information.  
  

Cancellation by the District.  The Amenity Manager will notify Patrons if there is a need to change or 
cancel a program.  If a program is cancelled, Patrons will be issued a refund or credit on their account if the 
money was received by the District.  If an outside vendor collected the fee the outside vendor is held responsible 
for the fee. 
  

Refunds.  Program refunds and credit may be granted on a case-by-case basis.  Refunds and credits after 
the program registration deadline or after a program begin may not be approved.    
  
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
  

All Patrons and Guests using the Amenities are expected to conduct themselves in a responsible, 
courteous and safe manner, in compliance with all rules and policies of the District. 
  

mailto:deerrunmgr@rmsnf.com


7 
4868-1288-3615.1  

Emergencies:  After contacting 911 if required, all emergencies and injuries must be reported to the on-
site Amenity Manager at 386-263-7213 or deerrunmgr@rmsnf.com, and to the office of the District Manager at 
904-940-5850.  

  
Hours of Operation.  All hours of operation of the Amenities will be established and published by the 

District. The clubhouse office will be closed on the following holidays: Easter, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas 
Eve, Christmas Day, and New Year’s Day.   The District may restrict access or close some or all the Amenities 
for purposes of providing a community activity, for making improvements, for conducting maintenance, or other 
purposes.  Any programs or activities of the District may have priority over other users of the Amenities.    

  
PLEASE BE AWARE THAT USE OF THE AMENITIES IS AT YOUR OWN RISK.  THE 

DISTRICT DOES NOT PROVIDE ANY SUPERVISION WITH RESPECT TO THE USE OF THE 
AMENITIES, AND THERE ARE INHERENT RISKS IN THE USE OF THE AMENITIES – E.G., THE 
USE OF THE COURTS, FITNESS ROOM, POOL, ETC. CAN RESULT IN SERIOUS BODILY 
INJURY OR EVEN DEATH.   

PARENTS AND LEGAL GUARDIANS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR MINOR CHILDREN 
WHO USE THE AMENITIES.  THE DISTRICT STRONGLY ENCOURAGES PARENTS AND 
LEGAL GUARDIANS TO ACCOMPANY AND SUPERVISE THEIR MINOR CHILDREN WHILE AT 
THE AMENITIES.    

  
Except as otherwise stated herein, the following additional guidelines govern the use of the Amenities 

generally:  
  

1. Registration.  All Patrons must have their assigned Access Card upon entering the clubhouse.  Cards are 
only to be used by the Patron to whom they are issued.  Patrons must present their Access Cards upon 
request by the Amenity Manager.  

2. Guests.  Guests must be accompanied by a Patron while using the Amenities, unless the Guest has 
purchased a Guest Access Card.   

3. Minors.  Adult Patrons are responsible for all minor Patrons from their household or visiting Guests, 
including any minors, at the Amenities; and, to better protect the health, welfare and safety of such 
minors, a parent/guardian (of at least 18 years of age) must accompany all such minors who are 14 of age 
and under or who are otherwise unable to govern and look after themselves in an appropriate manner.    

4. Attire.  Except for the pool and wet areas where bathing suits are permitted, Patrons and Guests must be 
properly attired with shirts and shoes to use the Amenities.  Wet bathing suits and wet feet are not allowed 
indoors.   

5. Food and Drink.  Food and drink will be limited to designated areas only.  Glass containers will not be 
permitted on any part of the pool deck or grill area at any time. 

6. Alcohol.  Alcoholic beverages shall not be served or sold at the Amenities, except for pre-approved 
special events. Patrons will be required to hire a licensed and insured vendor of alcoholic beverages, and 
they must provide proof of this to the Amenity Manager prior to the event. Anyone that appears to be 
under the influence of drugs or alcohol will be asked to leave.  

7.  No Smoking.  The use of tobacco products, to include vaping devices, shall not be permitted on or in 
any Amenity Center Property. 

8. Pets.  With the exception of service animals, pets are not permitted in the building or in the fenced in 
area of the pool deck. Where service animals are permitted on the grounds, they must be leashed.  Patrons 
are responsible for picking up after all pets for the safety and health to others and in accordance with the 
law.   

9. Vehicles.  Vehicles must be parked in designated areas. Vehicles should not be parked on grass lawns, 
footpath, or in any way which blocks the normal flow of traffic.  



8 
4868-1288-3615.1  

10. Skateboards, Etc.  Bicycles, skateboards, rollerblades, scooters, hover boards and other similar uses are 
limited to designated outdoor areas only.    

11. Fireworks.   Fireworks of any kind are not permitted anywhere on the Amenities or adjacent areas.      
12. Service Areas.  Only District employees and staff are allowed in the service areas of the Amenities.  
13. Courtesy.  Patrons and their Guests shall treat all staff members and other Patrons and Guests with 

courtesy and respect.    
14. Profanity.  Loud, profane or abusive language is prohibited.    
15. Horseplay.  Disorderly conduct and horseplay are prohibited.  
16. Equipment.  All equipment and supplies provided for use of the Amenities must be returned in good 

condition after use.  Patrons are encouraged to let the staff know if an area of the Amenities or a piece of 
equipment needs cleaning or maintenance.   

17. Littering.  Patrons are responsible for cleaning up after themselves and helping to keep the Amenities 
clean at all times.   

18. Solicitation and Advertising.  Commercial advertisements shall not be posted or circulated in the 
Amenities.  Petitions, posters or promotional material shall not be originated, solicited, circulated or 
posted on Amenities property unless approved in writing by the District. 

19. Firearms and Other Weapons.  Firearms are not permitted in any of the Amenities or on any District 
property in each case to the extent such prohibitions are permitted under Florida law.  Among other 
prohibitions, no firearms may be carried to any meeting of the District’s Board of Supervisors.  

20. Trespassing / Loitering.  There is no trespassing or loitering allowed at the Amenities.  Any individual 
violating this policy may be reported to the local authorities.  

21. Compliance with Laws.  All Patrons and Guests shall abide by and comply with any and all federal, state 
and local laws and ordinances, as well as any District rules and policies, while present at or utilizing the 
Amenities, and shall ensure that any minor for whom they are responsible also complies with the same.  

22. Surveillance.  Various areas of all Amenities are under twenty-four (24) hour video surveillance.  
23. Grills.  Grills located in the patio lounge are available under reservation or first come first serve basis. 

They must be used as instructed and properly turned off after every use. 
24. Bounce Houses.  Bounce houses and similar apparatus are permitted only outdoors and at the discretion 

of, and in areas designated by, the District. Proof of liability insurance acceptable to the District shall 
also be required.  

25. Cellular Phones.  To prevent disturbance to others, use of cellular telephones is limited while in the 
clubhouse.  Patrons and guests are asked to keep their ringers turned off or on vibrate while in the 
clubhouse.    

26. Lost Property.  The District is not responsible for lost or stolen items.  Staff members are not permitted 
to hold valuables or bags for Patrons or Guests.  All found items should be turned in to the Amenity 
Manager for storage in the lost and found.  Items will be stored in the lost and found for up to one month.    

27. Activities Prohibited inside the building. Throwing, kicking, or punching of any objects is prohibited 
in the building. No running in the building. Taking anything off property without permission is and 
unlawful action.  

28. Irrigation. Playing near or tampering with irrigation equipment is prohibited.  
29. Over Night Parking. Approved Overnight Parking shall be available to Community members under the 

following conditions: 
a Only “private passenger automobiles” and shall mean standard two-door, four-door automobile, 

pick-up, station wagon or minivan.  No truck, pick-up truck (used for commercial purposes), bus, 
trailer, or other commercial vehicle, mobile home, house trailer, camper, van, boat, boat trailer, 
horse trailer, utility trailer or trailer of any type, lawn mower, riding lawn mower or motorized 
lawn equipment or other recreational vehicle or the like shall not be permitted.  (this is similar to 
the HOA rules regarding Vehicular Parking Section 2) 

b Permits shall be assigned by the Amenity Staff 



9 
4868-1288-3615.1  

c Permits can only be reserved 3 days prior to use. 
d Each community member shall have a total of 14 days available annually for overnight parking 

at the Amenity Center 
e Permits shall be issued for no more than 4 days per permit 
f Community members shall be able to reserve one parking pass per household. 
g Permits shall be limited to 9pm to 8am.  Vehicles will need to be removed during other hours. 
h A limit of 5 spaces is available for parking and will be assigned by the Amenity Center Staff. 
i There is no fee for these Parking Permits. 

30. Civic Group Usage of the Amenity Center. Civic Groups are not permitted to use the amenity center 
facilities or meeting space. 

31. Resident Group Room Reservation (Amenity Calendar Events): Resident formed groups shall complete 
a Room Reservation Application that shall be reviewed by the Amenity Activity Group during their 
monthly meeting, for review and approval. 
 

FITNESS ROOM 
  

The following policies apply to the District’s fitness center:  
  

1. Exercise at Your Own Risk.  The fitness center is not supervised during operating hours.  All Patrons are 
encouraged to consult their physician before beginning an exercise program.   

2. Usage Restrictions.  For safety purposes, only patrons and Guests ages 15 and older may use the fitness 
center.    

3. Attire.  Appropriate attire including shorts, shirts, and closed toed athletic footwear must be worn at all 
times in the fitness center.  To maintain clean and sweat-free equipment, clothing must cover any part of 
the body exposed to direct contact with the equipment.    

4. Courtesy.  If a Patron/guest is waiting, cardiovascular equipment utilization is limited to 30 minutes.  If 
a Patron or Guest is waiting for the weight equipment, individuals should allow others to “work in” 
between sets.  All equipment must be wiped down after use with the wipes and/or spray provided.   

5. Food and Drink.  No food or chewing gum is permitted in the fitness center.  Water or other sport drinks 
must be contained in non-breakable spill-proof containers.    

6. Noise.  Personal music devices are permitted if used with headphones and played at a volume that does 
not disturb others.   

7. Equipment.  Weights or other fitness equipment may not be removed from the fitness center.  Please 
replace weights to their proper location after use.  Free weights are not to be dropped and should be 
placed only on the floor or on equipment made specifically for storage of the weights.  

8. Hand Chalk.  Hand chalk is not permitted.  
9. Personal Training.  Except as expressly authorized by the District, personal training for fees, or 

solicitation of personal training services for fees, is prohibited.  
 

  
SWIMMING POOL 

  
The following policies apply to the District’s pool:  

  
1. Swim at Your Own Risk.  The pool areas are not supervised, so all Patrons use the pool at their own 

risk.  
2. Operating Hours.  The pool areas are open from 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM.  No one is permitted in the 

pool at any other time unless a specific event is scheduled.   



10 
4868-1288-3615.1  

3. Skateboards, Etc.  No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades, hover boards, skateboards or 
other similar items are permitted on the pool deck.  

4. Food and Drink; Alcohol & Smoking.  Patrons are permitted to bring their own snacks and water to 
the pool; however, no food or beverages are permitted in the pool or the pool wet deck area, as defined 
by Florida law. Glass containers or breakable objects of any kind are not permitted within the fenced 
area surrounding the pool. Additionally, all General Provisions previously set forth herein apply, 
including but not limited to the prohibitions on alcohol and smoking set forth as paragraphs 6 and 7 
of the General Provisions.     

5. Unsafe Behavior.  No pushing, running, horseplay, sliding down bannisters and rails or other similarly 
unsafe behavior is allowed in the pool or on the pool deck area.  

6. Diving.  Diving is strictly prohibited at the pool, with the exception of swim team competitions pre-
approved by the District. 

7. Noise.  Radios, tape players, CD players, MP3 players and televisions, and the like are not permitted 
unless they are personal units equipped with headphones.  

8. Aquatic Toys and Recreational Equipment.  Prohibited items include, but are not limited to, rafts, 
inner tubes, scuba gear, squirt guns, swim fins, pool balls, frisbees, inflatable objects, or other similar 
water play items.  Exceptions are small personal floatation devices for swimming assistance, 
kickboards, masks, goggles, pool noodles, dive sticks, snorkels and water wings.  Amenities staff has 
the final say regarding the use of any and all recreational floatation devices, and the District reserves 
the right to discontinue usage of such play equipment during times of peak or scheduled activity at the 
pool, or if the equipment provides a safety concern.  

9. Entrances.  Pool entrances, including stairs and ladders, must be kept clear at all times.  
10. Railings.  No swinging, sliding, or climbing on ladders, fences, or railings is allowed.  
11. Pool Furniture.  Pool furniture is not to be removed from the pool area or placed in the pool to include 

the pool sundeck area.  
12. Chemicals.  Chemicals used in the pool may affect certain hair or fabric colors. The District is not 

responsible for these effects.  
13. Pets.  Pets, (with the exception of service animals), are not permitted on the pool deck area inside the 

pool gates at any time.  
14. Attire. Family-appropriate swimming attire (swimsuits) must be worn at all times.  
15. Parties. Parties at the pool are prohibited, and participants may be asked to leave by the Amenity 

Manager.   
16. Prevention of Disease.  All swimmers must shower before initially entering the pool.  Persons with 

open cuts, wounds, sores or blisters may not use the pool.  No person should use the pool with or 
suspected of having a communicable disease which could be transmitted through the use of the pool.    

17. Swim Diapers.  All persons who are not reliably toilet trained must wear swim diapers and a swimsuit 
over the swim diaper.  If contamination occurs, the pool will be closed for twenty-four (24) hours and 
the water will be shocked with chlorine to kill the bacteria. Any individual responsible for 
contamination of the pool may be held responsible for any clean-up or decontamination expenses 
incurred by the District. 

18. Pollution.  No one shall pollute the pool. Anyone who does pollute the pool is liable for any costs 
incurred in treating and reopening the pool.  

19. Lap Lanes.  Lap lanes are to be used only by persons swimming laps or water walking or jogging 
when lap swimmers are present. 

20. Minors.  Adult Patrons are responsible for all minor (one under the age of 18) Patrons from their 
household or visiting the Amenities as Guests of the Patron, and, to better protect the health, welfare 
and safety of such minors, a parent/guardian (of at least 18 years of age) must accompany all such 
minors who are 14 and under or who are otherwise unable to govern and look after themselves in an 
appropriate manner.  



11 
4868-1288-3615.1  

21. Reservation of Tables or Chairs.  Tables or chairs on the deck area may not be reserved by placing 
towels or personal belongings on them, except for up to thirty minutes unless while swimming in the 
pool.  

22. Pool Closure.  The pool may close due to weather warnings, fecal accidents, chemical balancing, or 
general maintenance and repairs.    

23. Weather.  The pool and pool area will be closed during electrical storms or when rain makes it difficult 
to see any part of the pool or pool bottom clearly.  The pool will be closed at the first sound of thunder 
or sighting of lightning and will remain closed for thirty 30 minutes after the last sighting.  Everyone 
must leave the pool deck immediately upon hearing thunder or sighting lightning, or when instructed 
to do so by the staff.    

24. Swim Instruction.  Except as expressly authorized by the District, swim instruction for fees, or 
solicitation of swim instruction for fees, is prohibited.  

25. Pool Furniture. No pool furniture permitted in the pool at any time.  
  

PICKLEBALL & BOCCE COURTS 
  
The following policies apply to the tennis courts:  
  

1. First Come Basis.  Courts are available for use by Patrons and Guests only on a first come first serve 
basis.  Court time is limited in accordance with the posted rules.   

2. Attire.  All players shall be dressed in appropriate attire, which includes shirts, tennis shoes, shorts or 
warm up suits.  These items must be worn at all times.  Hard and/or black soled shoes are restricted from 
the tennis courts.  

3. Use.  Pickleball courts are for pickleball only.  Bocce courts are for bocce only.  
4. Pets.  Pets, with the exception of service animals, are not permitted on the courts at any time.  
5. Food and Drinks.  Food and gum are not permitted on the courts.  Drinks must be in a non-breakable 

spill-proof container.    
6. Glass Containers.  No glass containers or breakable objects of any kind are permitted on the Pickleball 

Court.   
7. Operating Hours.  Courts are open from 7 a.m. to 10 p.m. or as otherwise posted.  No one is permitted 

on the courts at any other time unless a specific event is scheduled.   
8. Skateboards, Etc.  No bicycles, scooters, roller skates, roller blades or skateboards, hover boards or 

similar items are permitted on the pickleball court.  
9. Furniture.  No furniture, other than benches already provided, will be allowed on the playing surfaces.  
10. Equipment.  Patrons are responsible for bringing their own equipment.   
11. Minors. Adult Patrons are responsible for all minor Patrons from their household or visiting the Amenities 

as Guests of the Patron, and, to better protect the health, welfare and safety of such minors, a 
parent/guardian (of at least 18 years of age) must accompany all such minors who are 14 of age and under 
or who are otherwise unable to govern and look after themselves in an appropriate manner. 

 
  

OUTDOOR FIRE PIT AND FIREPLACE 
  

1. When in use fire pit must be constantly attended.  
2. Fire must be completely extinguished after use.  
3. Use is prohibited to anyone under the age of 18.  
4. Use only during operation hours.  

  
  



12 
4868-1288-3615.1  

THUNDERSTORM POLICY 
  
  Amenity Manager is responsible for the pool and or other District properties, during thunderstorms, heavy 
rain and other inclement weather.  The Amenity Manager will determine whether swimming is permitted during 
the times the swimming pool is attended.  During the periods of heavy rain, thunderstorms and other inclement 
weather, the pool area, tennis courts, recreational lake, and parks will be closed.  If heavy rain, thunder and/or 
lightning occurs, everyone will be required to exit the pool and other pool areas at the first sound of thunder 
and/or first sighting of lighting for a waiting period of at least 30 minutes.  At any point during the 30-minute 
waiting period, if thunder and/or lightning is heard or seen, the waiting period will be extended 30 minutes from 
the last sighting or sound.   
 
  

 
PROPERTY DAMAGE 

  
Each Patron shall be liable for any property damage at the Amenities caused by him or her, his or her 

Guests, or members of his or her Family.  The District reserves the right to pursue any and all legal and equitable 
measures necessary to remedy any losses due to property damage.    
  

Each Patron and Guest, as a condition of invitation to the premises of the Amenities, assumes sole 
responsibility for his or her property.  The District shall not be responsible for the loss or damage to any private 
property used or stored on the premises of the Amenities, whether in lockers or elsewhere.  

 
 

USE AT OWN RISK; INDEMNIFICATION 
  

Any Patron, Guest, or other person who participates in the Activities (as defined below), shall do 
so at his or her own risk, and shall indemnify, defend, release, hold harmless, and forever discharge the 
District and its contractors, and the present, former, and future supervisors, staff, officers, employees, 
representatives, agents, and contractors of each (together, “Indemnitees”), for any and all liability, claims, 
lawsuits, actions, suits or demands, whether known or unknown, in law or equity, caused wholly or in part 
by any individual of any age, or any corporation or other entity, for any and all loss, injury, damage, theft, 
real or personal property damage, expenses (including attorney’s fees, costs and other expenses for 
investigation and defense and in connection with, among other proceedings, alternative dispute resolution, 
trial court, and appellate proceedings), and harm of any kind or nature arising out of, or in connection 
with, the participation in the Activities, by said Patron, Guest, or other person, and any of his or her 
Guests and any members of his or her Family.     

Should any Patron, Guest, or other person, bring suit against the Indemnitees in connection with 
the Activities or relating in any way to the Amenities, and fail to obtain judgment therein against the 
Indemnitees, said Patron, Guest, or other person shall be liable to the District for all attorney’s fees, costs, 
and other expenses for investigation and defense and in connection with, among other proceedings, 
alternative dispute resolution, trial court, and appellate proceedings.  

The waiver of liability contained herein does not apply to any act of intentional, willful or wanton 
misconduct by the Indemnitees.    

  For purposes of this section, the term “Activities,” shall mean the use of or acceptance of the use of the 
Amenities, or engagement in any contest, game, function, exercise, competition, sport, event, or other 



13 
4868-1288-3615.1  

activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District, its contractors or third parties 
authorized by the District.  
  

SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 
  
  Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the Districts’ limitations on liability contained in 
Section 768.28, F.S., or other statutes or law.  
 

 
 
 

SEVERABILITY 
  

The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of these policies shall not affect the 
validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions, or any part of the policies not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable.  

 
AMENDMENTS / WAIVERS 

  
The Board in its sole discretion may amend these policies from time to time.  The Board may also elect 

in its sole discretion at any time to grant waivers to any of the provisions of these policies.  
  
 
 
The above Amenity Rules and Policies were adopted on __________by the Board of Supervisors for the 
Deer Run Community Development District, at a duly noticed public hearing and meeting. 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTACHMENT A:   Consent and Waiver Agreement (Community Programming) 
ATTACHMENT B:   Access Card Form 
 
     



14 
4868-1288-3615.1  

ATTACHMENT A 
Consent and Waiver Agreement 

 
- Deer Run Community Development District - 

The Deer Run Community Development District (“District”) owns and operates certain amenities, including a clubhouse, pool, pickle 
ball courts, bocce ball courts, and other facilities, and offers certain amenity programs, to the District’s patrons.  In consideration for 
being allowed to use the amenities and/or participate in the amenity programs (together, “Activities”), I hereby voluntarily assume any 
and all risk, including injury to my person and property, relating to the Activities, and agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
the District, Governmental Management Services, Riverside Management Services, and any of their affiliates, and their supervisors, 
officers, staff, agents, employees, volunteers, organizers, officials or contractors (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) from any  claim, 
liability, cost, or loss of any kind sustained or incurred by either any of the Indemnitees or by other residents, users or guests, and 
resulting from any acts or omissions of myself, my family members, or my guests, and arising out of or incident to the Activities, unless 
such loss is solely the result of Indemnitees’ gross negligence or intentional, willful, or wanton misconduct.  I further acknowledge and 
agree that I shall be bound at all times by the terms and conditions of the policies, rules and regulations of the District, as currently in 
effect and as may be amended from time to time.  I have read and understand the terms of this Consent and Waiver Agreement and have 
willingly signed below as my own free act, being both of lawful age and legally competent to do so.  Nothing herein shall constitute or 
be construed as a waiver of the District’s limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute or law. 

 
Participant(s) Name: 
 
 

Address: 

 
E-Mail: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
E-Mail: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Parent/Guardian Name: ________________________________________                                                                                              
(if Participant is a minor child) 

 

 
Parent/Guardian Signature: _____________________________________                                                                                          
(if Participant is a minor child) 

Date: 
_________________________ 

Parent/Guardian Address (if different than above):  
 
 
Phone Number (home): __________________________________ 
Phone Number (alternate): __________________________________ 

Emergency Contact:    
 
Phone Number: 

 
NOTE TO STAFF: THIS FORM MAY CONTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. DO NOT DISCLOSE ITS 
CONTENTS WITHOUT FIRST CONSULTING THE DISTRICT MANAGER. 
 
PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the information you submit on this form 
may become part of a public record. This means that, in response to a public records request, we may be required to disclose the 
information you submit to us. Under certain circumstances, we may only be required to disclose part of the information submitted 
to us.  If you believe that your records may qualify for an exemption under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, please notify the District 
Manager. 

 



15 
4868-1288-3615.1  

ATTACHMENT B:   Access Card Form 

 
  
  

ACCEPTANCE 
I acknowledge the waiver as set forth below and I agree to its terms.  I have also read and agree to abide by the Amenities Rules and 
Policies, as amended from time to time, and the District’s Rules of Procedure.  I also understand that I am financially responsible for 
and damages caused by my family members, my guests and me and those damages resulting from the loss or theft of my Amenities 
Access Card. 
Signature of Patron:  ________________________________________            Date: ___________________ 

WAIVER: 
I understand that the Deer Run Community Development District, and their supervisors, officers, agents, consultants and employees, 
assume no responsibility for injuries or illness that my minor child(ren) may sustain as a result of their physical condition or resulting 
from their participation in any activities, sports, use of the pool, use of exercise equipment, use of the playground or any other 
Amenities.  I expressively acknowledge on behalf of myself and my heirs that I assume the risk for any and all injuries and illness that 
may result from their participation in these activities or use of the Amenities.  I hereby release and discharge the Deer Run Community 
Development District, and their Supervisors, officers, agents, consultants and employees, from any claims for injury, illness, death, 
loss or damage that my minor child(ren) may suffer as a result of their participation in these activities.  I understand that the Deer Run 
Community Development District, are not responsible for personal property lost of stolen while participating in activities at the 
Amenity Center, pool, and recreational facilities. 
Signature of Parent or Guardian: _________________________________        Date: ___________________ 

FOR HOMEOWNERS and RENTERS: 
The undersigned, a resident landowner within the District, agrees and acknowledges that it will not provide Amenities Access Cards 
to any Tenant (as used herein, the term Tenant shall include all family members of the specifically named Tenant) without first 
providing an Amenities Access Card Form (“Registration”), executed by Tenant, to an Amenities Staff Member.  Should the 
undersigned provide Amenities Access Cards to Tenant without providing an Amenities Staff member with a Registration signed by 
Tenant, the undersigned agrees to be financially responsible for any damages caused by Tenant and agrees to indemnify the District, 
its supervisors, agents, staff and Riverside Management Services and its successors, from any and all liability for any injuries that 
Tenant may sustain in conjunction with the usage of the Amenity Facilities.  Nothing herein shall be considered as a waiver of the 
District’s sovereign immunity or Limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may 
have been Adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28 Florida Statutes or other statue. 
 
Signature of Home Owner: _____________________________________         Date:  ___________________ 

OFFICE USE ONLY 
___________________                       ___________________                      ____________________________ 
Date Received                                      Date Entered in System                       Staff Member Signature 
 

AUTHORIZED ACCESS CARD(S) 
 

Access Card Number:  ____________________________ 
 
Access Card Number:  ____________________________ 
 

******There is a fee up to $25 per Access Card for any lost, stolen or replacement Access Card****** 
 



16 
4868-1288-3615.1  

 

PART 2:  Deer Run Community Development District  
Rule for Amenities Rates 
 
 
In accordance with Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and on July 27, 2022, at a duly noticed public 
meeting, the Board of Supervisors of the Deer Run Community Development District adopted the following 
rates, fees and charges for the operation of the District’s Amenities.  All prior rates, fees and charges of the 
District are hereby superseded on a going forward basis.  
 
 
Introduction.  This rule addresses various rates, fees and charges associated with the Amenities.  
  
1. Definitions.  All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them 

in the Amenities Rules and Policies of the Deer Run Community Development District, as amended from 
time to time.   
  

2. Annual User Fee.  For Non-Resident Patrons, the Annual User Fee is equal to the average annual 
operation and maintenance assessment and debt assessment as established by the District in connection 
with the adoption of the District’s annual fiscal year budgets.  For Residents, the Annual User Fee is paid 
when the Resident makes payment for the Resident’s annual operation and maintenance assessment, and 
debt service assessment, for the property owned by the Resident.   

 
3. Non-Clubhouse Rates.  The following non-clubhouse fees apply: TBD when applicable.  

  
4. Miscellaneous Fees.   

Item  Fee  
Access Cards (2 per house hold on first distribution)  Free  
Replacement of, Damaged, Lost, or Stolen Access Card  $10.00-$25.00 
 Non-Resident Annual Fee  $2,500.00 

Event Room Rentals  
 
*A staff member shall be onsite during all Rentals. 

$50/Hourly (NTE 4 Hours) 
 
Deposit: $200 

  
5. Special Provisions.    

  
a. Homeowner’s Association Meetings.  Unless otherwise provided in the District’s official policies, 

as may be amended from time to time, each homeowner’s association located within the boundaries 
of the District is permitted one free meeting per month, subject to availability.  

b. Additional Costs.  The District may in its sole discretion require additional staffing, insurance, 
cleaning, or other service for any given event, and, if so, may charge an additional fee for the event 
equal to the cost of such staffing, insurance, cleaning, or service.    

  
6. Adjustment of Rates.  Not more than once per year, the Board may adjust by resolution adopted at a 

duly noticed public meeting any of the fees set forth in paragraphs 4, 5, and 6 by not more than five 
percent per year to reflect actual costs of operation of the Amenities, to promote use of the Amenities, or 



17 
4868-1288-3615.1  

for any other purpose as determined by the Board to be in the best interests of the District. The Board 
may also in its discretion authorize discounts for certain services.  
  

7. Prior Rules; Policies.  The District’s prior rules setting amenities rates are hereby rescinded.  The 
District’s Amenities Policies, as may be amended from time to time, govern all use of the Amenities.  
  

8. Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of this rule shall not affect 
the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this rule, or any part of this rule not held to be 
invalid or unenforceable.  

  
Law Implemented: ss. 190.011, 190.035, Fla. Stat. (2018);  Effective Date: July 27, 2022 
    
  



18 
4868-1288-3615.1  

PART 3:  Deer Run Community Development District  
Disciplinary & Enforcement Rule  
  
In accordance with Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes, and on July 27, 2022, at a duly noticed public 
meeting, the Board of Supervisors of the Deer Run Community Development District adopted the 
following policies to govern the operation of the District’s Amenities.  All prior policies of the District are 
hereby superseded on a going forward basis.  
 
Introduction.  This rule addresses disciplinary and enforcement matters relating to the use of the amenities and 
other properties owned and managed by the District.  All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the 
definitions ascribed to them in the District’s Amenities Operating Rules.  
  
1. General Rule.  All persons using the Amenities and entering District properties are responsible for 
compliance with, and shall comply with, the Amenities Rules established for the safe operations of the District’s 
Amenities.    
  
2. Suspension of Rights.  The District, through its Board, District Manager, Amenities Manager, shall have 
the right to restrict, suspend, or terminate the Amenities privileges of any person to use the Amenities for any of 
the following behavior:  
  

a. Submits false information on any application for use of the Amenities;  
b. Permits the unauthorized use of an Access Card;  
c. Exhibits unsatisfactory behavior, deportment or appearance;  
d. Fails to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely manner;  
e. Fails to abide by any District rules or policies (e.g., Amenity Rules and  

Policies);   
f. Treats the District’s supervisors, staff, amenities management, contractors, or other representatives, 

or other residents or guests, in an unreasonable or abusive manner;  
g. Damages or destroys District property; or  
h. Engages in conduct that is improper or likely to endanger the health, safety, or welfare of the District, 

or its supervisors, staff, amenities management, contractors, or other representatives, or other 
residents or Guests.  

  
3. Authority of Amenities Manager.  The Amenities Manager or his or her designee has the ability to 
remove any person from one or all Amenities if any of the above-referenced behaviors are exhibited or actions 
committed.  The Amenities Manager or their designee may at any time restrict or suspend for cause or causes, 
including but not limited to those described above, any person’s (and his/her family’s) privileges to use any or 
all of the Amenities for a period not to exceed thirty days.  
  
4. Authority of District Manager.  The District Manager may at any time restrict, suspend or terminate 
for cause or causes, including but not limited to those described above, any person’s (and his/her family’s) 
privileges to use any or all of the District Amenities for a period greater than thirty days.  Any such person will 
have the right to appeal the imposition of the restriction, suspension or termination before the Board of 
Supervisors.    

  
5. Enforcement of Penalties/Fines.  For any of the reasons set forth in Section 3 above, the District shall 
additionally have the right to impose a fine of up to the amount of $1,000 – in addition to any amounts for 



19 
4868-1288-3615.1  

damages – and collect such fine, damages and attorney’s fees as a contractual lien or as otherwise provided 
pursuant to Florida law.  
  
6. Legal Action; Criminal Prosecution.  If any person is found to have committed any of the infractions 
noted in Section 3 above, such person may additionally be subject to arrest for trespassing or other applicable 
legal action, civil or criminal in nature.  

  
7. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this rule shall be held to be invalid or 
ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this rule shall continue in full force and effect, it being expressly 
hereby found and declared that the remainder of this rule would have been adopted despite the invalidity or 
ineffectiveness of such section, paragraph, clause or provision.  
  
Law Implemented: ss. 190.011, 190.035, Fla. Stat. (2018);  Effective Date: July 27, 2022  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Deer Run CDD Irrigation 

 

The Grand Reserve CDD Irrigation system pumping station and it’s controls were upgraded and repaired 
on Aug 29th.  The system is being monitored to ensure proper operation.  

 

In an effort to ensure the system continues to operate effectively and efficiently for all residents of 
Grand Reserve we ask the following of our residents. This may be new information to those of you who 
have never had an irrigation system before.  

The irrigation controller installed in your home needs to be programmed correctly. The rain sensor 
needs to be working and in service so watering lawns is prevented when there has been an adequate 
amount of rainfall.  There is a bypass switch on the controller that should NOT be bypassed. The 
controller should be programmed to water each zone for 20-30 minutes two or three times per week 
during the summer. During the winter the controller should be reprogrammed to water each zone for 
10-15 minutes twice a week.  The morning hours seems to be the preferred recommendation for 
watering.  The controller has programming instructions inside the door of the controller. If you have 
questions or need help it is available.  

The flow of the sprinklers should be monitored and adjusted and cleaned as needed. If the spray is 
watering the street or driveway it should be adjusted. If the spray pattern is not full then the screen in 
the spray head might need to be cleaned.  

If this guidance is followed by all residents the irrigation system will fulfill all our needs. If you have any 
questions or need help programming your controller please ask for help, it is available. Call the Amenity 
Center and leave your name and number and someone will get back to you. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



1/24/2024 

 
 
  

Deer Run 
Community Development District 

Field Operations & Amenity Management Report 

Kayla Rinker 
AMENITY MANAGER 
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.  
 
 

Richard Gray 
MANAGER OF OPERATIONS 
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.  
 

 



 
Deer Run  

 
Community Development District 

 
 

Amenity Management Report 
January 24, 2024 

 
 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From:  Kayla Rinker 
  Amenity Manager 
 
  Richard Gray  
  Manager Of Operations 
 

RE: Amenity Management Report – January 24, 2024 
 

The following is a summary of items related to the field operations, 
maintenance, and amenity management of Deer Run CDD.  



Deer Run Community Events 

The following is a summary of community events and activities held at the Amenity Center:

Special Events:  

 December 7th Bingo Night 
 December 9th Christmas Event 
 December 11th Craft Night 
 December 15th Paint Night 
 January 4th Bingo Night 
 January 8th Craft Night  
 January 19th Paint Night 

 

Upcoming Special Events: 

 January 26th Bourbon Night 
 February 1st Bingo Night 
 February 5th New Resident Orientation 
 February 9th Paint Night 
 February 11th Superbowl Party 
 February 12th Craft Night 
 March 7th Bingo Night 
 March 11th Craft Night 
 March 16th Easter Event 
 March 22nd Paint Night 

 
Classes: 

 Zumba on Wednesday’s and Friday’s  
 Yogalates on Saturday afternoons  
 Refit on Tuesday’s and Thursday’s is cancelled until further notice. 
 Yoga on Thursdays is cancelled until further notice 
 Card Making and scrapbooking Class every 2nd and 4th Saturday has been 

discontinued 
 
 



 
Community Organized Events: 

 Ladies Night is the second Tuesday of the month. 
 Bunco is the first Monday and second and third Thursday of the month. 
 Quilting is every Friday.  
 Diamond Painting is every Sunday.  
 Music with Kurt & Debbie is held on the 1st Friday of the month.  
 Poker Night is every third Tuesday, and Friday of the month. 
 Ladies Poker Night is every Wednesday. 
 LRC is every Monday, and the first and third Saturday of the month. 
 Lob Wedge Social is the second Friday of the month 
 Grand View Potluck is every last Friday of the month 
 Pickleball is on Monday, Wednesday, Friday’s, and Sundays. 
 Party with The Reserves is the last Saturday of the month. 
 Card Game Night is every Sunday night. 
 Happy Hour is every Friday. 
 Euchre is the 2nd Saturday of every month 
 
 

 



 



 
 

Highlights of Events Held 



 
 

Amenity Center Maintenance 
           

       Below is a list of maintenance responsibilities that are completed weekly:  
 
 Debris cleaned up and removed throughout the community including the pond banks, 

roadways, pickleball courts, pool area and parking lot areas. 
 All trash receptacles were emptied, and bags replaced.  
 All pool furniture on the pool deck and BBQ and bar area is monitored and checked daily, 

straightened, cleaned, and organized as well as all tables and chairs inside the clubhouse, 
and upstairs patio lounge.  

 Light fixtures were inspected, and damaged or out bulbs were replaced.  
 
 

Additional Maintenance Items Completed 
 

 All pool deck signs were cleaned on November 1st.  
 Grills are cleaned on an as needed basis.  
 All gym equipment is cleaned on a consistent basis going forward.    
 Hornet nests are sprayed on a regular basis. 
 Both kitchen areas, including refrigerators, were deep cleaned on November 16th. This 

will be done on a consistent basis going forward.  
 Sprayed all weeds on pool deck, pickleball court, and bocce ball. 
 Touch up paint has been done around the inside of the facility.  
 Yellowstone started their fall cutback around the amenity center. 
 RMS is continuing to work on the Stormwater issues that were presented in the districts 

report. 
 J&J Aquatics will be going to (2) site visits a month starting this month Jan until Oct 2024. 

 
 
 

Administrative items Completed. 
 
 

 Deer Run Website will continue to be updated on a regular basis. 
 An overnight parking policy has been enforced. 
 Food trucks have been very successful with serving the community. We are now able to 

introduce more variety to the residents. 
 Weekend coverage with staff begins Memorial Day weekend and will continue through 

Labor Day Weekend only. 
 Amenity Manager orders/purchases supplies for facility and events on a regular basis 
 Monthly Calendars and Newsletters are created and sent out via email blast. 



4 
 

 Potential New Groups and Clubs applications presented to the Amenity Activities 
Committee Monthly 

 Invoices approved and sent over to accounting for payment. 

Completed Projects 

  

 

Yellowstone replanted and staked downed 
Magnolia Tree (At no-cost to the district) 

RMS rehung gym rules sign on 
entrance door. 



4 
 

  

 RMS replaced lightbulb that was 
out in Men’s RR at Amenity Center 

 Yellowstone cutback around 
outfall structure to provide better 
flow. 



4 
 

Completed Projects 
 

  

RMS decorated outside and inside 
of Amenity Center 

 
 



 

 

 
 

Conclusion 
 
All outlined items above are for the Board consideration. For any questions or concerns regarding 
the above information, please contact Kayla Rinker, Amenity Manager, at 386-263-7213 or 
deerrunmgr@rmsnf.com. 
 

 
 
Kind Regards, 

 
Kayla Rinker 
Amenity Manager 
 
Richard Gray 
Manager Of Operations 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



DEER RUN

Friday, January 5, 2024

7 Issues Identified

Antonio Perez
Yellowstone Landscape



ISSUE 1
Across from 621 Grand Reserve Drive debris was dumped in the
woodline.

ISSUE 2
Prune 3 palms with dead palm fronds at no cost

FERT & CHEM
On 12/27/23 we treated all the turf around the amenity center at Deer Run on a service call visit.
We used a combination of fungicide and potassium to control the active fungus and promote a
healthy root base. We will be making our next regular scheduled application this January or
February which will be our pre and post emergent herbicide treatment.

ISSUE 4
Fallen dead tree removed and disposed of property. At no cost.



ISSUE 5
Staked Magnolia tree that Was Knocked Down By A Vehicle.
At no cost.

ISSUE 6
Approved proposal for the cutback around the outfall structure
completed.

ISSUE 7
Pruned both entrances and amenity center.
Irrigation inspection completed as well.
Mowing and trash pick up was completed as well.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 

DEER RUN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Deer Run Community 

Development District was held Wednesday, November 29, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the Island Club, 

501 Grand Reserve Drive, Bunnell, Florida. 

 
 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 David St. Pierre Chairman 
 Andre Poulin Vice Chairman 
 Greg Dean Supervisor 
 Gary Garner Supervisor 
 Shannon Martin Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 Howard McGaffney District Manager 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel by telephone 
 Kayla Rinker RMS 
 Rich Gray RMS 
 William Whitson Flagler County School District 
 Jay Walker Flagler County School District 
 
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. St. Pierre called the meeting to order and called the roll.   

 Mr. Poulin presented a plaque to Gail Lambert in appreciation of her service on the board 

and in recognition of all the work and everything she has done for the district. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Engineer’s Report – Recommendation of 
Areas 4 & 11 

 This item tabled. 

 



November 29, 2023 Deer Run CDD 

2 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation from Flagler County School 
District Regarding School 
Bus/Transportation 

 Mr. Whitson gave a short presentation on proposed bus stops in Grand Reserve and stated 

we have hundreds of kids to pick up all over the county and we want to try to be efficient and 

effective and cut down on fuel.  If we need to put together a group to look at other options we 

will be happy to do that. We want to be proactive as the community and students grow over time.   

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals From M and M 
Sales-Service 

A. Irrigation Pump and Control Cabinet Replacement 

B. Monitoring Service 

C. Warranty 

 Mr. Gray stated the irrigation pump and control cabinet was approved at the last meeting.  

The reason I wanted it added to this agenda is because there was a change in price to the benefit 

of the district.  The original total was $85,860, the new total is $84,510 with a difference of 

$1,350 the district will save from the previously approved price.   

 This is an online monitoring service where you can have four email addresses onto the 

account.  Basically, any fluctuation within the system we will get an alarm or a warning.  Tim 

would be one, I would be the second and there would be two additional that can be added if 

needed to get those alerts.   

 Mr. St. Pierre stated since Greg has maintained the irrigation for this coming year, he 

would be the next one. 

 Mr. Dean stated one of the things that Tim and I had not completed the discussion on was 

the monitoring and I’m not sure monitoring without being able to perform actions is worthwhile.  

If he gets a trouble alarm or something and he can go in and perform an action to restore it, I’m 

okay with that.  But just saying, it is down, we have more than enough residents that tell us 

within minutes. 

 Mr. Gray sated that is my concern in speaking to Tim.  If he gets an alert he will call me.  

He will be onsite within one or two hours to look at the system.  If it is something he can put 

back into service immediately, he will do it. There will be a service fee attached to that.  The 

monitoring service does not include any work that needs to be done. 

 Mr. St. Pierre asked what is the charge for the monitoring service? 



November 29, 2023 Deer Run CDD 

3 

 Mr. Gray stated $2,800 per year and for three years it is $8,400 but the reason it had to be 

proposed before we do the install is he has to buy the components to put into the control cabinet 

so he needs to know beforehand when he assembles it.   

 Mr. Dean asked does that include the cellphone charge? 

 Mr. Gray stated I will find out.  He didn’t mention anything about a cellphone charge. 

 Mr. McGaffney stated I think his proposal said cell service $2,800.   

 Mr. Dean stated we still need to get together and sit down with him and go over all the 

details. 

 Mr. Gray stated yes and I was going to get together with you after the meeting on the date 

he provided to see if it work for you.   

 The monitoring component was tabled. 

 Mr. Gray stated the VFD drives have a one-year manufacturing warranty; the additional 

five-year warranty is going to cover major lightning strikes or any kind of component failures 

which does not come standard under the manufacturing warranty.  If it is placed under insurance 

purposes then if we can prove it was done by a lightning strike then possibly we can recover the 

money back through the insurance.  However, if nothing is on the insurance per se and the 

lightning strike happens the current manufacturer specs for the one-year will not cover it.  We 

would have full replacement of two VFD drives if they both went down totaling about $17,000.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Poulin seconded by Mr. Garner with all in 
favor the extended five-year warranty in the amount of $8,780 was 
approved. 

 

 Mr. Gray stated this approval will extend the 90-days on the labor to one-year.  This will 

cover the labor for one-year on the VFD and 5-years on the warranty of the VFD itself. 

 

 Fence Proposals 

 This item tabled. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. Attorney 



November 29, 2023 Deer Run CDD 

4 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I’m continuing to be thoughtful about the easement that was 

requested, but there is no urgency and the more I think about it the more questions I have.  If you 

have any thoughts on the easement itself, feel free to contact me, otherwise I am going to 

continue to put together a list of issues that I think need to be resolved before the board takes any 

action on it. 

 Mr. St. Pierre stated I think whatever we agree to this easement we should agree to some 

kind of payment into our funds from those people to help pay some of the costs of keeping up 

with the property on that street.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated that is something that I considered as well.   

 

 B. District Manager 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

D. Operations Manager 

1. Report 

 Mr. Gray stated J&J Aquatics will be here next week.  He was here Monday and told me 

a lot of the grounds were wet and I told him to pull off I didn’t want him to do turf damage so he 

will be back next week to spray the ponds and algae. 

 Sunshine A.C. Company will be onsite December 7th for the quarterly maintenance and I 

will keep you informed on what happens after that inspection. 

 I did hear back from D.R. Horton on an update on the mail kiosks, they will start 

construction by the end of next week; staking and layout has been done and it will be a 30-day 

on the install.   

 On phase 5, which is where Grand Reserve Drive dead ends into the woods, the phase 5 

clearing crew is starting to mobilize today, residents can anticipate clearing operations and 

earthwork to begin soon.  There will be no import hauling for at least the next couple of months, 

however, most of the traffic going in and out of that site will be the workers, no personal vehicles 

and no equipment daily.  Hours of operation are Monday through Friday 7 to 7 and Saturday will 

be 10 – 5.  No work on Sundays. 

 Mr. St. Pierre stated remind them that the speed limit is 25 mph, speed limit on speed 

bumps is 15 mph, we expect it to be strictly enforced by them, they also need to clean up the 



November 29, 2023 Deer Run CDD 

5 

roads every day.  Find out when the mailboxes will be moved.  D.R. Horton promised us a speed 

bump into the Links and they would fix the first one.   

 Mr. McGaffney stated they are also getting ready to do the pavement on the intersections 

to repave that area because we are patching it now.  As part of that initiative that speed bump 

was going to be addressed.   

 

2. Yellowstone Audit Report 

 A copy of the Yellowstone monthly report was included in the agenda package. 

 

E. Amenity Manager 

 A copy the amenity manager’s report was included in the agenda package. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests 

 Additional comments: The interested resident’s subgroups have been redone: Andre will 

take the amenity center maintenance, Shannon will take over the amenity center social, Gary has 

contracts, Greg is going to take on irrigation and landscaping, resident comments at the top of the 

meeting may be redundant, resident comments at the beginning of the meeting should be for 

items not on the agenda, as we go through the agenda give them another opportunity to 

comment, is there a way to get these presentations such as the one this evening on the bus stops 

on television, potentially livestream the meetings, the amenities group did away with the rental 

of the hall, we would like to bring it back: limit rentals to this room only and only for four hours, 

at $50 per hour with a $200 refundable deposit, pay a staff member to be present during rentals, 

pros and cons and cost of having staff available, notice rulemaking with the maximum amount 

for r 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Poulin seconded by Mr. Garner with all in 
favor staff was authorized to notice the rulemaking process for 
room rentals of $75 per hour with a four-hour limit with a $200 
refundable deposit. 

 



November 29, 2023 Deer Run CDD 

6 

 Additional comments:  Item 19 of amenity center rules dealing with overnight parking 

change to permitting system for three-day use for guest parking for a total of 14-days for the 

year, signage, agreement with tow company,  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Poulin seconded by Ms. Martin with all in 
favor staff was authorized to work with Mr. Poulin and district 
counsel on enforcement of overnight parking. 

 

 Additional comments:  Need for signage for no parking areas and enter agreement with 

tow company, stormwater drainage inspections should be on punch list for Phase 4, is there a 

local company that can do sprinkler and fire extinguisher, put letter on door of owner who has 

trailer in the cu-de-sac that it needs to be removed, on Fairway the BMW is parked next to a fire 

hydrant, adopt policy for watering and violations,  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Garner seconded by Ms. Martin with all in 
favor Supervisor Dean will work with staff to prepare a policy for 
irrigation times and violations. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments 

 Additional comments:  Put times irrigation can be used or turn off the system between 10 

and 4, how do you enforce parking rules in amenity parking lot, 18 wheelers making deliveries to 

wrong streets, need signage, notify D.R. Horton. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the October 25, 2023 Meeting 

B. Balance Sheet as of October 31, 2023 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

for the Period Ending October 31, 2023 

C. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

D. Approval of Check Register 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Poulin seconded by Mr. Dean with all in favor 
the consent agenda items were approved. 

 



November 29, 2023 Deer Run CDD 

7 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting January 24, 2024 at 
6:00 p.m. at the Island Club 

 Mr. St. Pierre stated the next meeting will be held January 24, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. at the 

same location.   

 

On MOTION by Mr. Garner seconded by Ms. Martin with all in 
favor the meeting adjourned at 7:31 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
November	30,	2023



1

2-3

4

5

6

7-8

9

10 Assessment	Receipt	Schedule

Month	to	Month

Table	of	Contents

Balance	Sheet

General	Fund

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2018

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Capital	Reserve	Fund

Capital	Projects	Fund	Series	2018



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
November	30,	2023

	 General	 Capital	Reserve Debt	Service	 Capital	Projects Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	
Operating	Account 152,797$																 25,257$																		 -$																								 -$																								 178,054$																

Investments:
Series	2018
Reserve -$																								 -$																								 325,994$																 -$																								 325,994$																
Revenue -$																								 -$																								 219,459$																 -$																								 219,459$																
Interest -$																								 -$																								 682$																							 -$																								 682$																								
Prepayment -$																								 -$																								 3,346$																				 -$																								 3,346$																					
Sinking	Fund -$																								 -$																								 352$																							 -$																								 352$																								
Construction -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 23,179$																		 23,179$																			

Due	from	General	Fund -$																								 -$																								 42,412$																		 -$																								 42,412$																			
Due	from	Other 100$																							 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 100$																								

Total	Assets 152,897$															 25,257$																	 592,245.99$									 23,180$																	 793,579$																

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 14,511$																		 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 14,511$																			
Accrued	Expense	Payable 9,997$																				 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 9,997$																					
Due	to	Debt	Service 42,412$																		 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 42,412$																			
FICA	Payable 92$																										 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 92$																										

Total	Liabilites 67,012$																	 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 67,012$																		

Fund	Balance: 	
Restricted	for:
Debt	Service	-	Series	2018 -$																								 -$																								 592,246$																 -$																								 592,246$																
Capital	Projects	-	Series	2018 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 23,179$																		 23,179$																			

Assigned	for:	
Capital	Reserves -$																								 25,257$																		 -$																								 -$																								 25,257$																			

Unassigned 85,885$																		 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 85,885$																			

Total	Fund	Balances 85,885$																	 25,257$																	 592,246$															 23,180$																	 726,567$																

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 152,897$																 25,257$																		 592,246$																 23,180$																		 793,579$																

1



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	November	30,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	11/30/23 Thru	11/30/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Assessments 1,006,746$										 142,108$														 142,108$														 -$																															
Golf	Course	Lake	Maintenance	Contribution 4,368$																				 -$																									 -$																									 -$																															

Total		Revenues 1,011,114$										 142,108$														 142,108$														 -$																																					

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 8,000$																				 1,333$																				 1,200$																				 133$																													
FICA	Expense 612$																								 102$																								 92$																											 10$																																
Engineering 12,000$																	 2,000$																				 2,730$																				 (730)$																											
Dissemination 2,500$																				 417$																								 417$																								 0$																																			
Attorney 20,000$																	 3,333$																				 4,825$																				 (1,492)$																							
Annual	Audit 4,000$																				 -$																															 -$																															 -$																																					
Trustee	Fees 3,500$																				 -$																															 -$																															 -$																																					
Arbitrage 450$																								 450$																								 450$																								 -$																																					
Assessment	Roll	Services 2,500$																				 2,500$																				 2,500$																				 -$																																					
Management	Fees 36,486$																	 6,081$																				 6,081$																				 0$																																			
Information	Technology 1,161$																				 193$																								 194$																								 (0)$																																	
Website	Maintance 694$																								 116$																								 116$																								 0$																																			
Telephone 168$																								 28$																											 2$																														 26$																																
Postage 650$																								 108$																								 165$																								 (57)$																														
Insurance 7,744$																				 7,744$																				 7,040$																				 704$																													
Printing	&	Binding 800$																								 133$																								 41$																											 93$																																
Travel	Per	Diem 250$																								 42$																											 -$																															 42$																																
Legal	Advertising 4,000$																				 667$																								 331$																								 336$																													
Other	Current	Charges 2,500$																				 417$																								 270$																								 147$																													
Office	Supplies 100$																								 17$																											 1$																														 16$																																
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175$																								 175$																								 175$																								 -$																																					

Total	General	&	Administrative 108,290$														 25,856$																	 26,627$																	 (771)$																											

Operations	&	Maintenance

Field	Expenditures
Field	Management 33,418$																	 5,570$																				 5,570$																				 0$																																			
Electric 103,789$														 17,298$																	 14,857$																	 2,442$																									
Water	&	Sewer 16,000$																	 2,667$																				 2,469$																				 198$																													
Landscape	Maintenance 185,400$														 30,900$																	 20,133$																	 10,767$																						
Landscape	Contingency 3,000$																				 500$																								 3,250$																				 (2,750)$																							
Mulch 5,000$																				 833$																								 -$																															 833$																													
Tree	Pruning 4,500$																				 750$																								 -$																															 750$																													
Lake	Maintenance	and	Repairs 24,476$																	 4,079$																				 4,078$																				 2$																																			
Irrigation	Repairs 20,400$																	 3,400$																				 1,350$																				 2,050$																									
Sidewalk	Repair 2,500$																				 417$																								 -$																															 417$																													
Street	Repair 5,000$																				 833$																								 -$																															 833$																													

Subtotal	Field	Expenditures 403,483$														 67,247$																	 52,232$																	 15,015$																						

Deer	Run

2



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	November	30,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	11/30/23 Thru	11/30/23 Variance

Deer	Run

Amenity	Expenditures
Amenities	Management 75,000$																	 12,500$																	 13,713$																	 (1,213)$																							
Facilities	Assistant 16,823$																	 2,804$																				 -$																															 2,804$																									
Property	Insurance 58,517$																	 58,517$																	 32,984$																	 25,533$																						
Pool	Maintenance 12,342$																	 2,057$																				 1,950$																				 107$																													
Pool	Chemicals 11,616$																	 11,616$																	 2,724$																				 8,892$																									
Janitorial	Services 15,643$																	 2,607$																				 2,600$																				 7$																																			
Pest	Control 1,100$																				 183$																								 90$																											 94$																																
Facilities	Maintenance 17,500$																	 2,917$																				 1,712$																				 1,205$																									
Cable,	Internet	&	Telephone	Services 6,000$																				 1,000$																				 1,245$																				 (245)$																											
Electric	-	Amenities 16,000$																	 2,667$																				 2,723$																				 (56)$																														
Water	&	Sewer	-	Amenities 23,000$																	 3,833$																				 7,522$																				 (3,689)$																							
Gas	Service 950$																								 158$																								 73$																											 85$																																
Security	Monitoring 1,500$																				 250$																								 119$																								 131$																													
Access	Cards 500$																								 500$																								 -$																															 500$																													
Operating	Supplies 3,000$																				 500$																								 400$																								 100$																													
Amenity	Repairs	&	Maintenance 18,800$																	 3,133$																				 5,157$																				 (2,024)$																							
Pool	Repairs	&	Maintenance 10,000$																	 10,000$																	 10,458$																	 (458)$																											
Special	Events 15,000$																	 2,500$																				 3,438$																				 (938)$																											
Holiday	Décor 2,000$																				 333$																								 -$																															 333$																													
Fitness	Center	Repairs	&	Maintenance 1,050$																				 175$																								 -$																															 175$																													
Office	Supplies 1,000$																				 167$																								 443$																								 (276)$																											
Elevator	Maintenance 2,000$																				 333$																								 -$																															 333$																													
Capital	Project 190,000$														 31,667$																	 -$																															 31,667$																						

Subtotal	Amenity	Expenditures 499,341$														 150,418$														 87,443$																	 62,974$																						

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 902,824$														 217,665$														 139,676$														 77,989$																						

Total	Expenditures 1,011,114$										 243,521$														 166,303$														 77,217$																						

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																															 (24,196)$															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 110,081$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 85,885$																	

3



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	November	30,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	11/30/23 Thru	11/30/23 Variance

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Capital	Reserve -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance -$																															 -$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 42,132$																	 25,257$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 42,132$																	 25,257$																	

4



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2018

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	November	30,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	11/30/23 Thru	11/30/23 Variance

Revenues:
	
Assessments 648,163$														 100,567$														 100,567$														 -$																															
Interest 100$																								 17$																											 6,615$																				 6,598$																				

Total		Revenues 648,263$														 100,583$														 107,182$														 6,598$																				

Expenditures:

Interest	-	11/1 218,900$														 218,900$														 218,623$														 278$																								
Special	Call	-	11/1 -$																															 -$																															 95,000$																	 (95,000)$															
Principal	-	5/1 210,000$														 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															
Interest	-	5/1 218,900$														 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Expenditures 647,800$														 218,900$														 313,623$														 (94,723)$															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 463$																								 (206,441)$												

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 378,368$														 798,687$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 378,830$														 592,246$														

5



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District
Capital	Projects	Fund	Series	2018

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	November	30,	2023

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	11/30/23 Thru	11/30/23 Variance

Revenues
	
Interest -$																															 -$																															 192$																								 192$																								

Total		Revenues -$																															 -$																															 192$																								 192$																								

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Expenditures -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures -$																															 192$																								

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 22,988$																	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending -$																															 23,179$																	

6



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:
	
Assessments -$																								 73,843$																 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 73,843$																
Golf	Course	Lake	Maintenance	Contribution -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								

Total		Revenues -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 142,108$													

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees -$																														 1,200$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1,200$																			
FICA	Expense -$																														 92$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 92$																										
Engineering 2,535$																			 195$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 2,730$																			
Dissemination 208$																							 208$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 417$																							
Attorney 3,745$																			 1,080$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 4,825$																			
Annual	Audit -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Trustee	Fees -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Arbitrage 450$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 450$																							
Assessment	Roll	Services 2,500$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 2,500$																			
Management	Fees 3,041$																			 3,041$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 6,081$																			
Information	Technology 97$																										 97$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 194$																							
Website	Maintance 58$																										 58$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 116$																							
Telephone 2$																													 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 2$																													
Postage 108$																							 57$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 165$																							
Insurance 7,040$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 7,040$																			
Printing	&	Binding 41$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 41$																										
Travel	Per	Diem -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Legal	Advertising 303$																							 28$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 331$																							
Other	Current	Charges 135$																							 135$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 270$																							
Office	Supplies 1$																													 0$																													 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1$																													
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 175$																							

Total	General	&	Administrative 20,437$																 6,190$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 26,627$																

Operations	&	Maintenance

Field	Expenditures
Field	Management 2,785$																			 2,785$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 5,570$																			
Electric 7,418$																			 7,438$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 14,857$																
Water	&	Sewer 975$																							 1,493$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 2,469$																			
Landscape	Maintenance 10,067$																 10,067$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 20,133$																
Landscape	Contingency -$																														 3,250$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 3,250$																			
Mulch -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Tree	Pruning -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Lake	Maintenance	and	Repairs 2,039$																			 2,039$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 4,078$																			
Irrigation	Repairs 1,350$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1,350$																			
Sudewalk	Repair -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Contingency -$																														 527$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 527$																							

Subtotal	Field	Expenditures 24,634$																 27,598$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 52,232$																

Month	to	Month

7



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Amenity	Expenditures
Amenities	Management 7,183$																			 6,530$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 13,713$																
Facilities	Assistant -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Property	Insurance 32,984$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 32,984$																
Pool	Maintenance 975$																							 975$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1,950$																			
Pool	Chemicals 1,360$																			 1,364$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 2,724$																			
Janitorial	Services 1,200$																			 1,400$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 2,600$																			
Pest	Control -$																														 90$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 90$																										
Facilities	Maintenance 1,712$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1,712$																			
Cable,	Internet	&	Telephone	Services 622$																							 622$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1,245$																			
Electric	-	Amenities 1,230$																			 1,492$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 2,723$																			
Water	&	Sewer	-	Amenities 3,284$																			 4,238$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 7,522$																			
Gas	Service 35$																										 38$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 73$																										
Security	Monitoring 119$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 119$																							
Access	Cards -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Operating	Supplies 400$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 400$																							
Amenity	Repairs	&	Maintenance 5,157$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 5,157$																			
Pool	Repairs	&	Maintenance 10,208$																 250$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 10,458$																
Special	Events 3,438$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 3,438$																			
Holiday	Décor -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Fitness	Center	Repairs	&	Maintenance -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Office	Supplies 443$																							 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 443$																							
Elevator	Maintenance -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														
Capital	Project -$																														 92$																										 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 92$																										

Subtotal	Amenity	Expenditures 70,351$																 17,093$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 87,443$																

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 94,985$																 44,691$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 139,676$													

Total	Expenditures 115,422$													 50,881$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 166,303$													

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (115,422)$											 (50,881)$														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 (24,196)$														

8



Deer	Run
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Interest	Rate: 5.40%,	5.50%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2044
Reserve	Fund	Definition 50%	of	Maximum	Annual	Debt	Service
Reserve	Fund	Requirement $322,969
Reserve	Fund	Balance $325,994

Bonds	Outstanding	-	08/02/18 $11,175,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	05/01/19 ($205,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	05/01/19 ($430,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/01/19 ($895,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	05/01/20 ($215,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	05/01/20 ($75,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	08/01/20 ($640,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/01/20 ($10,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	05/01/21 ($180,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	05/01/22 ($190,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	08/01/22 ($15,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/01/22 ($55,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	05/01/23 ($200,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	05/01/23 ($10,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	08/01/23 ($10,000)
Less:	Special	Call	-	11/01/23 ($95,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $7,950,000

Series	2018,	Special	Assessment	Revenue	and	Refunding	Bonds

9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Gross	Assessments 1,227,367.82$						 780,442.48$							 446,925.34$					
Net	Assessments 1,153,725.75$						 733,615.93$							 420,109.82$					

Series	2018
63.59% 36.41% 100.00%

DATE Check# DESCRIPTION GROSS	AMT COMMISSIONS DISC/PENALTY INTEREST NET	RECEIPTS O&M	Portion DSF	Portion Total

11/30/23 65980 10/01/23-11/12/23 123,571.13$		 2,370.00$															 5,071.18$														 -$																										 116,129.95$										 73,843.18$										 42,286.77$								 116,129.95$					
-$																				 -$																												 -$																										 -$																										 -$																												 -$																									 -$																							 -$																								

TOTAL 123,571.13$		 2,370.00$															 5,071.18$														 -$																										 116,129.95$										 73,843.18$										 42,286.77$								 116,129.95$					

10% Gross	Percent	Collected
1,103,796.69$			 Balance	Remaining	to	Collect

DR	Horton
Net	Assessments 506,177.92$								 273,057.92$										 233,120.00$							

DATE DUE CHECK NET AMOUNT GENERAL DEBT	SERVICE

	RECEIVED DATE NO. ASSESSED RECEIVED FUND FUND	2018

11/8/23 10/1/23 1784208 126,544.48$								 126,544.48$								 68,264.48$													 58,280.00$										
12/1/23 126,544.48$								 68,264.48$													 58,280.00$										
2/1/24 126,544.48$								 68,264.48$													 58,280.00$										
5/1/24 126,544.48$								 68,264.48$													 58,280.00$										

506,177.92$								 126,544.48$								 273,057.92$										 233,120.00$							

DEER	RUN
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Special	Assessment	Receipts
Fiscal	Year	2024

ON	ROLL	ASSESSMENTS

DIRECT	ASSESSMENTS

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



  

Fund Date Check No.'s Amount

General Fund
11/6/23 1918-1920 15,470.03$                              
11/7/23 1921-1933 44,901.25$                              
11/13/23 1934-1935 7,432.80$                                
11/17/23 1936-1946 77,618.15$                              
11/28/23 1947-1948 5,102.50$                                

Total Amount 150,524.73$                 

Deer Run
Community Development District

Summary of Check Register

November 01, 2023 through November 30, 2023



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  1/18/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 11/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 ***       DEER RUN CDD - GENERAL FUND

BANK A DEER RUN CDD

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/06/23 00098 10/11/23 12937    202310 320-53800-55000                                     *            9,712.40
FILTER MEDIA REPLACEMENT

10/11/23 13057    202310 320-53800-55000                                     *               76.00
INSTALL PRESSURE GAUGE

10/16/23 13064    202310 320-53800-55000                                     *              420.00
INSTALL STRAINER BASKET

BIG Z POOL SERVICE, LLC                                        10,208.40 001918
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/06/23 00035 11/06/23 11062023 202311 300-20700-10100                                     *            3,545.78

TSFR TAX RCTPS SER2018
DEER RUN CDD C/O REGIONS BANK                                   3,545.78 001919

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/06/23 00035 11/06/23 11062023 202311 300-20700-10100                                     *            1,715.85

TSFR EXCESS FEES
DEER RUN CDD C/O REGIONS BANK                                   1,715.85 001920

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00036 10/19/23 6149-10- 202310 310-51300-31200                                     *              450.00

ARBITRAGE SER18 FY23
AMTEC                                                             450.00 001921

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00091 10/06/23 0F611731 202310 320-53800-54000                                     *            2,672.29

SPRINKLER REPAIR
CINTAS FIRE 636525                                              2,672.29 001922

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00043 10/20/23 2348343  202309 310-51300-31100                                     *              292.50

ENGINEER SVCS SEPT 23
DEWBERRY ENGINEERS INC.                                           292.50 001923

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00027 11/01/23 30001603 202311 320-53800-43000                                     *              902.00

PREMIUM LIGHTING NOV 23
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY                                     902.00 001924

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00001 9/30/23 356      202310 310-51300-31700                                     *            2,500.00

ASSESSMENT ROLL CERT FY24
10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,040.50

MANAGEMENT FEES OCT 23
10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-35200                                     *               57.83

WEBSITE ADMIN OCT 23
10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-35100                                     *               96.75

INFORMATION TECH OCT 23
10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-31300                                     *              208.33

DISSEMINATION SVC OCT 23
10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-51000                                     *                1.02

OFFICE SUPPLIES OCT 23
10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-42000                                     *              108.23

POSTAGE OCT 23

DRUN DEER RUN       IARAUJO   



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  1/18/24          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 11/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 ***       DEER RUN CDD - GENERAL FUND

BANK A DEER RUN CDD

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-42500                                     *               40.80
COPIES OCT 23

10/01/23 354      202310 310-51300-41000                                     *                1.52
TELEPHONE OCT 23

10/01/23 355      202310 320-53800-12000                                     *            2,784.83
FIELD MANAGEMENT OCT 23

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                8,839.81 001925
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00082 10/09/23 100      202310 320-53800-48300                                     *              300.00

CLEANING 10/2/23
10/15/23 101      202310 320-53800-48300                                     *              300.00

CLEANING 10/9/23
10/21/23 102      202310 320-53800-48300                                     *              300.00

CLEANING 10/16/23
10/31/23 103      202310 320-53800-48300                                     *              300.00

CLEANING 10/23/23
11/04/23 104      202311 320-53800-48300                                     *              300.00

CLEANING 10/30/23
J&G COMMERCIAL CLEANING SERVICE LLC                             1,500.00 001926

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00085 10/30/23 3297584  202309 310-51300-31500                                     *               95.50

GENERAL COUNSEL SEPT 23
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                     95.50 001927

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00087 8/31/23 7166995  202308 320-53800-46200                                     *            6,895.00

INSTALL IRRIGATION SYSTEM
POWER & PUMPS INC                                               6,895.00 001928

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00104 10/13/23 1243     202310 320-53800-54000                                     *            1,638.85

NEW BURNERS FOR GRILLS
PRO TECH GAS SERVICES, LLC                                      1,638.85 001929

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00059 11/01/23 11129560 202311 320-53800-48100                                     *            1,364.20

WATER MANAGEMENT NOV 23
POOLSURE                                                        1,364.20 001930

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00034 10/30/23 110036   202309 310-51300-32300                                     *            3,500.00

TRUSTEE FEE SER218 FY23
REGIONS BANK                                                    3,500.00 001931

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00056 9/30/23 185      202309 320-53800-12100                                     *            1,051.25

ASSISTANT MANAGER SEPT 23
10/18/23 186      202310 320-53800-59000                                     *            1,447.22

SPECIAL EVENTS OCT 23
10/18/23 187      202309 320-53800-59100                                     *              781.62

HOLIDAY DECOR SEPT 23

DRUN DEER RUN       IARAUJO   



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  1/18/24          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 11/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 ***       DEER RUN CDD - GENERAL FUND

BANK A DEER RUN CDD

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/18/23 187      202309 320-53800-50000                                     *            1,054.48
FACILITY MAINT SEPT 23

10/18/23 187      202309 320-53800-55000                                     *               80.49
POOL REPAIR SEPT 23

10/18/23 187      202309 320-53800-54000                                     *              650.51
AMENITY REAPIR SEPT 23

10/18/23 187      202309 320-53800-53000                                     *              134.50
OPERATING SUPPLIES SEPT23

10/18/23 187      202309 320-53800-57000                                     *              134.50
OFFICE SUPPLIES SEPT 23

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC                              5,334.57 001932
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/07/23 00042 10/25/23 PC 60975 202310 320-53800-46200                                     *            1,350.00

REPAIR MAINLINE BREAK
11/01/23 PC 61019 202311 320-53800-46000                                     *           10,066.53

LANDSCAPE MAINT NOV 23
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                          11,416.53 001933

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/13/23 00081 11/08/23 20083    202311 320-53800-55000                                     *              250.00

INSTALL FILL TANK ASSEMBL
AQUATIC XPRESSS                                                   250.00 001934

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/13/23 00056 10/31/23 189      202310 320-53800-12100                                     *              932.80

FACILITY ASSISTANT OCT 23
11/01/23 188      202311 320-53800-12100                                     *            6,250.00

FACILITY MGMT NOV 23
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC                              7,182.80 001935

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00096 11/15/23 60326    202311 320-53800-59200                                     *               92.45

FINISH PLAQUE
CROWN TROPHY                                                       92.45 001936

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00003 10/31/23 00059943 202310 310-51300-48000                                     *              253.60

NOT WORKSHOP 10/2/23
10/31/23 00059943 202310 310-51300-48000                                     *               28.46

NOT BOS MTG 10/18/23
10/31/23 00059943 202310 310-51300-48000                                     *               20.64

NOT WORKSHOP 10/18/23
DAYTONA NEWS-JOURNAL                                              302.70 001937

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00035 11/16/23 11162023 202311 300-20700-10100                                     *           58,280.00

DIRECT ASSESST 10/1 PYMT
DEER RUN CDD C/O REGIONS BANK                                  58,280.00 001938

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00043 11/09/23 2361575  202310 310-51300-31100                                     *            2,535.00

ENGINEER SVCS OCT 23
DEWBERRY ENGINEERS INC.                                         2,535.00 001939

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

DRUN DEER RUN       IARAUJO   



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  1/18/24          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 11/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 ***       DEER RUN CDD - GENERAL FUND

BANK A DEER RUN CDD

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/17/23 00066 11/01/23 53726543 202311 320-53800-48400                                     *               89.60
PEST CONTROL NOV 23

FLORIDA PEST CONTROL & CHEMICAL CO                                 89.60 001940
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00001 11/01/23 357      202311 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,040.50

MANAGEMENT FEES NOV 23
11/01/23 357      202311 310-51300-35200                                     *               57.83

WEBSITE ADMIN NOV 23
11/01/23 357      202311 310-51300-35100                                     *               96.75

INFORMATION TECH NOV 23
11/01/23 357      202311 310-51300-31300                                     *              208.33

DISSEMINATION SVC NOV 23
11/01/23 357      202311 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .03

OFFICE SUPPLIES NOV 23
11/01/23 357      202311 310-51300-42000                                     *               56.72

POSTAGE NOV 23
11/01/23 358      202311 320-53800-12000                                     *            2,784.83

FIELD MANAGEMENT NOV 23
11/01/23 358      202311 320-53800-49000                                     *              526.63

BEST BUY NOV 23
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                6,771.62 001941

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00092 10/18/23 70767    202310 320-53800-51000                                     *              118.75

NETWORK EQUIPMENT
HI-TECH SYSTEM ASSOCIATES INC                                     118.75 001942

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00102 10/08/23 POY89206 202310 320-53800-47000                                     *            2,038.93

POND MAINTENANCE OCT 23
11/10/23 POY89290 202311 320-53800-47000                                     *            2,038.93

POND MAINTENANCE NOV 23
J & J AQUATICS SPECIALIST LLC                                   4,077.86 001943

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00082 11/13/23 105      202311 320-53800-48300                                     *              300.00

CLEANING 11/6/23
J&G COMMERCIAL CLEANING SERVICE LLC                               300.00 001944

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00093 9/19/23 2023-9S7 202309 320-53800-56000                                     *              175.00

GYM EQUIPMENT MAINT
LLOYDS EXERCISE EQUIPMENT                                         175.00 001945

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/17/23 00056 11/10/23 190      202310 320-53800-53000                                     *              400.09

OPERATING SUPPLIES OCT 23
11/10/23 190      202310 320-53800-54000                                     *              846.00

AMENITY R&M OCT 23
11/10/23 190      202310 320-53800-57000                                     *              442.94

OFFICE SUPPLIES OCT 23

DRUN DEER RUN       IARAUJO   



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  1/18/24          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 11/01/2023 - 11/30/2023 ***       DEER RUN CDD - GENERAL FUND

BANK A DEER RUN CDD

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/10/23 190      202310 320-53800-50000                                     *            1,195.00
FACILITY MAINT OCT 23

11/10/23 191      202310 320-53800-59000                                     *            1,991.14
SPECIAL EVENT 11/5/23

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC                              4,875.17 001946
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/28/23 00082 11/18/23 106      202311 320-53800-48300                                     *              300.00

CLEANING 11/13/23
J&G COMMERCIAL CLEANING SERVICE LLC                               300.00 001947

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11/28/23 00089 2/25/23 1797     202302 320-53800-46200                                     *            4,802.50

REMAINING BALANCE PUMP
M&M SALES SERVICE                                               4,802.50 001948

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                150,524.73

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              150,524.73

DRUN DEER RUN       IARAUJO   







apple
Highlight



apple
Highlight


















































































































































	Agenda
	IV. Public Hearing Adopting User Rates and Fees for Amenity Rental and Security Deposit, Resolution 2024-03
	V.        Consideration of Resolution 2024-04, Amending Amenity Policies 
	VI.       Consideration of Fence Proposals 
	VII.     Discussion of Irrigation Guidelines 
	 XI. C.           1.                                                               Report 
	            2.                                                               Yellowstone Report 
	XIV. A.                                                                          Approval of the Minutes of the November 29, 2023 Meeting 
	B.                                                                          Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2023 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the Period Ending December 31, 2023 
	C.        Assessment Receipt Schedule 
	D.        Approval of Check Register 



